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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ebix Payment Services Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as Itz Cash
Card Pvt. Ltd.)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ebix Payment
Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Itz Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.) (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019, the Statement of Profitand Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive loss,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information other than financial statement and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
information. The other information comprises the information included in Board's
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon:
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed on the other information, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
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arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
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them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B".

(g) The Company is a Private Limited Company and accordingly requirements of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 35 to
the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 006711N/N500028
N4

WY/

Hitesh Garg

Partner

Membership No. 502955

Place: Noida
Date: 29th November 2019

UDIN . \AS 02055 AAAA BLHMESD
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Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (formerly known as Itz Cash Card Pvt.
Ltd.)

“Annexure A” as referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) The company does not have any immovable property and hence clause 3 (i) (¢)
of the Order is not applicable to the company.

2. (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year.
In our opinion, the frequency of such physical verification is adequate.

(b) The Company has generally maintained proper records of inventory. There were
no discrepancies between physical verification and the book records.

3.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms' limited liability
partnership or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loan or given any guarantee or security or made any
investment covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the
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10.

11.

Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues including
employees state insurance, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it except some delays
noticed in deposition of TDS. Further, there were no arrears of undisputed statutory
dues as at 31st March 2019, which were outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from
financial institutions, banks, Government or debenture holders. Accordingly, clause 3
(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause
3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 are
not applicable for Private Limited Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential
allotment of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3
(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s\_Regiergtion No. 006711N/N500028

Hif’élf'!éh; Garg
Partner
Membership No. 502955

Place: Noida
Date: 29th November 2019

UDAN . \q502955 AAARADL G ND 3D
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Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Itz Cash Card Pvt Ltd.)

“Annexure B” as referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ebix Payment

Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Itz Cash Card Pvt Ltd.) ("the Company”) as of

31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements based on the internal
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements
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was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial control system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial control with reference to Ind
AS Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial control
with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system
with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that:

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial
statements were operating effectively as at 315t March 2019, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

YV X
Hitesh Garg
Partner
Membership No. 502955

Place: Noida
Date: 29th November 2019
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Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN - U74999MH2006PTC160835

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Note No. As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 10.91 231
Intangible assets 4 18.07 27.43
Intangible assets under development 670.03 .
Investments in Subsidiary 5 5.00 5.00
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 20.14 20.14
{ii) Loans 7 113.95 63.95
{iii) Other Non-Current Financial Assets B8 89.92 26.18
Non Current Tax Assets (Met) 9 899.87 609.16
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 10 861.22 962.83
Total Non-Current Assets 2,689.11 1,717.00
Current Assets
Inventories 11 376.62 29.23
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 2,82326 3,808.89
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 10,622.83 7,812.47
(iii) Other Bank Balances 14 1,479.00 2,117.43
(iv) Other Current Financial Assets 15 774.14 6,652.42
Other Current Assets 16 2,168.83 3,045.46
Total Current Assets 18,244.68 23,465.90
Total Assets ZUi533.?9 25!182.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 17 1,687.71 1,687.71
Other Equity 18 9,490.91 §,705.05
Total Equity 11,178.62 11,392.77
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 19 9.78 13.73
Provisions 20 2.85 .78
Total Non-Current Liabilities 12.63 16.51
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 3,571.50 4,414.07
(i) Other Current Financial Liabilities 21 3,229.83 8,276.02
Other Current Liabilities 22 2,864.43 977.40
Provisions 23 76.78 105.63
Total Current Liabilities 9,742.54 13,773.12
Total Liabilities 9!755,1? 13E79EI.13
Total Equity and Liabilities 20,933.79 25,182.90
Notes to Financial Statements 1to43
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred ta in our report of even date
Significant Accounting Policies 2
For T R Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants - Ebix Payment Services Pvt. Ltd.

{Formerly known as |TZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)

SatyaBliushan Kotru Vikas Verma
Director Director
DIN: 01729176 DIN: 03511116

Rahul Chopra

Company Secretary
M. No.: 41826

Partner
M. No.: 502355

Place: Noida
Date: 29th November 2019




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as [TZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN - U74999MH2006PTC160835

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

N .
particulars ote No For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 24 21,235.42 25,091.15
Cther Income 25 1B3.97 505.81
Total Income 21,421.39 25,596.96
Expenses
Purchase of Stock in Trade 26 10,948.30 12,184.71
Change in Inventory of Trading Goods 27 (347.39) 167.74
Employee Benefits Expense 23 834.29 1,724.84
Finance Costs 29 67.56 66.32
Depreciation Expense 30 1364 6,55
Other Expenses 31 9,986.36 9,585.37
Total Expenses 21,502.76 23,735.53
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (81.37) 1,861.43
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 32 1.44 -
Deferred Tax 32 109.61 [941.76]
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (A) _ [192.42) 2,803.19
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined bensfit plans (29.72) (72.37)
Deferred Tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (8.00) (21.07)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (B) (21.72) 51,30
Taotal Comprehensive Income for the Year (A + B) (214.14) 2,751,89
Earnings per Equity Share of Rs. 10 each 33
Basic (0.01} 0.17
Diluted (0.01) 0.17
Notes on Financial Statements 1to43
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
Significant Accounting Policies 2
For T R Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Ebix Payment Services Private Limited
Firm R - D067 110/ NS00028 (Former! iown as ITZ Cash Card Pvr. Ltd.)

t Vfl —-
—

v

Hi rg Satya HHushaff Kotru Vikas Verma
Partner Director Director

M. No.: 502955 DIN: 01729176 DIN: 03511116
Place: Noida L

Date: 29th November 2019

/:' {‘ B
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“Rahul Chopra
Company Secretary
M. No.: 41826




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pt Ltd.)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

(a) Equity Share Capital As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

No. of Shares Amount Nao. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 168,771 1,687.71 167.064 1,670.64
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year = - 1,707 17.07
Balance at the end of the year 168,771 L1687.71 168,771 1,687.71
{b) Other Equity

— Reserves&Surplus ocl
Securities Premium 2 Remeasurement of
Account Rxcaiond Esmings Defined Benefit Plans Yotal
Balance as at 31 March 2017 22,857.30 (16,547.54) 17.97) 5,401.79
Changes in Accounting Policy / Prior Period Errors - - &
Restated Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Perlod 22,557.30 {16,547.54) (7.97) 6,401.79
Profit/ (loss) for the year . 2,803.19 - 2.803.19
Other comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year . - (51.30) [(51.30)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 2,803.19 (51.30) 2,751.89
Addition during the year 551.37 - + 551.37
Balance as at 31 March 2018 23,508.67 (13,744.35) (59.27) 9,705.05
Changes in Accounting Policy / Prior Perlod Errors - - B
Restated Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Pericd 23,508.67 (13,744.35) {59.27) 9,705.05
Profit/ (loss) for the year - (192.42) - {192.42)
Other comprehensive Income, (Loss) for the year - - 121.73) {21.72)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year = {182.42] [21.72) {214.14)
Addition during the year i = . .
Balance as at 31 March 2019 13.@.5? {13,936.77) |!0ﬁ] O,m_
As per our report of even date attached
For TR Chadha & Co LLP For and on bahalf of the board of directors of
g‘“";’ ed “’f‘”““?‘"‘:" = Eblx Paytan ServcesPruate Limited
i Foeg dloy; 00G7 111t £ 5000 (Formedly knpwn as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)
1 s V Y-

Hitesh Garg Satya Bhu: Kgtru Vikas Verma
Partner Director Director
M. No.: 502955 DIN: 01729176 DIN: 03511116
Place: Nolda P
Date: 29th November 2019 A

| Chopra
o | Company Secretary
\ =1 M. No.: 41826




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2019
All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A Cash flows from Operating Activities
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Prior Period Items and Before Tax (81.37) 1,861.43
Adjustments For:
a} Interest Income (29.51) (151.42)
b) Depreciation 13.64 6.55
) Interest Expense 67.56 £6.32
Operating Cash Profit before Working Capital Changes (29.68) 1,782.88
Movement in Working Capital:-
a) Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (842.57) 1,160.28
b) Increase/|Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 1,887.03 (1,334.31)
¢) Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Financial Liabilities (3.95) 1.63
d) (Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current Financial Assets (113.74) (16.03}
&) Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (58.50) (136.66)
f) {Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets 6,516.71 3,513.68
g) (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (347.39) 167.73
h) {Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 085.97 (3,137.48)
i) (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 876.63 (807.99)
j) Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities |5,048.19) 4,875.54
Cash Generated from/ (used in) Operations 3,822.32 6,009.27
Less: Income Tax Paid {Net of Refunds) (291.35) [262.10)
Net Cash Generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities before Extraordinary Item 3,530.97 5,807.16
Outflow for Extraordinary ltem - -
Net Cash Generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities (A) 3,530.97 5,807.16
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
(Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work in Progress (682.56) (15.62)
Net Froceeds of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work in Progress - -
Interest Received 29.51 151.42
Net C nerated Used in) Investing Activities (B (653.05) 135.80
C.  Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Net proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings - (17.46)
Interest Expense Paid (67.56) [66.32)
Issue of Shares . 568.43
Net Cash gener; used in) Financing Activiti (67.56) 484.66
Net Increase/(Decrease) in ash Equivalents [ A+B+ 2,810.36 6,427.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 7,812.47 1,384.85
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year 10,622.83 7,812.47
Component of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cashin Hand 0.06 0.35
Cheques in Hand 5,251.59 -
Balance with Bank in Current Account 5,371.18 7,812.12
10,622.83 7,812.47

As per our report of even date.

Forand on behalf of the board of directors of
Ebix Payment Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)

For TR Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm H?gﬂp.: 006711N /500028
/

A

/ \
Hits Vikas Verma
Partner Director
M. No.: 502955 DIN: 03511116
Place: Noida f

Date: 29th November 2019

\ Rahul Chopra
Company Secretary
M. No.: 41826




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pyt Ltd.)
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

All Amounts in INK Lakhs unless otherwise stated

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Particulars As at & Deletions/ As at B at Deletions/ As at As at As at
31 March 2018 Ademions Adjustments 31 March 2019 | 31 March 208 "20M™  pgjutments 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 _31 March 2018
Tangible Assets
Equipments 028 9.11 - 9.40 . 169 - 169 7 0.28
Computers 193 : & 193 0.90 0.93 % 183 110 20
Furniture and fistures - 219 .18 - 0.0 0.0 2.10 -
Total 3.21 1131 - 14,52 0.90 27 3.61 1091 2.31
Gross Block Depreclation Net Block
|Particulars Asat 3 Deletions/ As at As at Deletions/ Asat As ot As at
31 March 2017 Aaditrens Adjustments 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 20O coments 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Tangible Assets 1
Equipments = 0.28 0.8 - - - 028
Computers 2.82 0.11 133 0.90 - 0.90 103 282
Total 282 0.39 - 3.21 0.90 0.90 231 282
4, Intangible Assets
T -
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Particulars Asat Deletions/ Adjustment As at As at . Deletions/ Asat Asat As at
31 March 2018 Alddions s 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 "29°™  pgjustments 31 March 2019 | 31 March 201931 March 2018
Intangible Assets
Computer softwares 3308 L57 - 3465 5,65 10.93 16.58 18.07 27.43
Total 33.08 157 3465 5.65 10.93 - 16.58 18.07 27.43
Gross Block i TNet Block
Particulars Asat Deletions, Asat As at Deletions/ As at As at As at
Addit
31 March 2017 i Adjustments 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 HONS ) justments 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Intangible Assets
Computer softwares 17.84 1534 33.08 - 565 - 5.65 1743 17.84
Total 17.84 15.24 - 13.08 . 5.65 . 5.65 27.43 17.84




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stoted

5 Investment in Subsidiary

Investment Measured at Cost
- In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies - Un-quoted, fully paid up
50,000 (As on 31 March 2018: 50,000) shares of It2Cash Payment Solutions Limited of Rs. 10 each

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate book value of un-quoted investments

6 Investment Others
Investment Measured at fair value through OCI
- Investments in Equity Shares of Other Companies - Un-quoted, fully paid-up
382 (As on 31 March 2018: 382} shares of Jouska Tech Private Limited of Rs. 10 each

Aggregate book value of guoted investments
Aggregate book value of un-guoted investments

-4

Non- Current Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits

8 Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good

Balance with Banks in depasits accounts®

*includes deposits of Rs. 65.15 Lakhs {As on 31 March 2018: Rs, 26.18 Lakhs) pledged with Bank against

guarantee
9 MNon Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance tax (Net of provision for income tax)

10 Deferred Tax Liabilities/ Assets [Net)
Deferred Tax Liability:

Deferred Tax Assets:

Provision for long term employee benefits

Difference between Book and Income Tax depreciation
Accumulated Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation
Provision for bad & doubtful debts

Total

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Particulars

Cpening Balance as on 1st April

Deferred tax Income/ (expense) during the period recognised in profit & (oss
Deferred tax income/ (expense) during the period recognised in OCI

Closing Balance

11 Inventories
(At cost or NRV whichever is lower)

Stock in trade:-
Prepaid Glft vouchers

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

5.00 5.00

5.00 5.00

5.00 5.00

20.14 20.14

20.14 20.14

20.14 20.14

113.595 53.95

113.95 63,95

£89.92 26,18

B9.92 26.18

899.87 609.16
899.87 609.16

20.70 3157

375.44 512.70
455.00 411.75

6.08 6.81

B861.22 962.83

As at 31st March 2019

As at 31st March 2018

962.83 -
(109.61) 941.76
a.00 21.07
861.22 952-23-&
376,62 28.23
376.62 29.23

o



Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

12

14

15

16

Trade Receivables

{Unsecured and considered good)
-from Related parties [Refer Note 37)
~from Others

Less; Allowances for bad & doubtful Debts

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with banks:
= Incurrent account

Chegues in Hand
Cashin hand

Other Bank Balances

Balance with Banks:
= In current account#
4n Deposits accounts®

# In Escrow accounts a5 per Reserve Bank of india guldelines an Prepaid Payment instruments

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
273 >
2,84391 3,830.27
2338 23.38
2,823.26 3!808.39
5,371.18 7,812.12
5,251.59 -
008 035
10,622.83 7,812.47
1,131.19 171662
347.81 400.81
1,479.00 2,117.43

* Includes bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months of As. 54.28 Lakhs (As on 31 March 2018: 175.05 Lakhs)
+Deposits of Rs. 144 69 Lakhs {As on 31 March 2018; Rs. 257.38 Lakhs) are pledged with banks against guarantees given and deposits of Rs, 50.00 Lakhs (As on 31

March 2018; Rs. 50.00 Lakhs) are in escrow account,

Other Current Financial Assets

Receivables:
-from Related Farties {Refer Note 37)
-from Others

Interest Accrued on term depaosits
Acerued Income®

*Movement in Contract Assets during the year
Balance as the beginning of the year

Revenue recoglzed during the year

Invoices ralsed during the year

Balance as the end of the year

Other Current Assets

Advance to Vendors

Trade Advances to Related Party (Refer Note 37)
GS5T/Service Tax Credit Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

421.13 5,750.16
4.50 797.76
2118 15.34
327.33 89.17
774.14 6,652.42
29.17
327.33
89.17
327.33
498.43 1,880.93
1,529.17 1,122.14
11.89 23.84
129.34 18.55
2,168.83 3,045.46




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
all Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
17 Share Capital
Authorised:
20,000,000 (31 March 2018: 20,000,000) Equity Shares of f5.10 each 2,000.00 2,000.00
5,500,000 (31 March 2018: 5,500,000) Preference Shares of Rs, 100 each 550.00 550.00
2,550.00 2,550.00
Issued, subscribed & fully paid up:
16,877,137 (31 March 2018: 16,877,137) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,687.71 1,687.71
1,687.71 1,687.71

a. Terms and rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of Equity shares referred to as equity shares each having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, The Equity Shares have rights, preferences and restrictions
which are in accordance with the provisions of law, in particular the Companies Act, 2013,

b. In the event of liquidation of the campany, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the campany, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders,

¢, Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

rumber of Shares Amount
Outstanding as at 31 March 2018 16,877,137 1,687.711
Equity Shares issued during the year - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2019 16,877,137 1,687.71
d. Shareholders holding maore than 5% of the Equity shares in the company
Name of the Shareholders As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
No. of Shares Percentage No. of Shares Percentage
Ebix Singapore Pte. Ltd. . 3,731,235 122.11%
EbixCash World Money Limited 3,731,235 22 11% - -
Ebix Software India Private Limited 9,770,435 57.89% 9,770,435 57 89%
Intrex India Private Limited 3,355,427 19.88% 3,355427 19.88%
18 Other Equity
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
8. Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 23,508.67 22,957.30
Addition during the year - 551.37
Balance at the end of the year 23,508.67 23,508.67
b. Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (13,744.35) {16,547.54)
Add: Profit for the year after taxation as per statement of Profit and Loss 1152.42) 2,803.19
(13,936.77) 113,744.35)
<. Other Comprehensive Income
rRemeasurement of defined benefit plans
Balance at the beginning of the year 159.27) [7.97)
Addition during the year (21.72) [51.30)
Balance at the end of the year 80.99) [59.27)
Total Equity 9,490.91 9,705.05

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium account
Securities premium account is used to recerd the premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised In arcardance with the provisions of the Act.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the fallswing as per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

{a) actuarial gains and losses

[b) the return an plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit [iability (asset); and

{c) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined banafit liabiliy {asset)




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
19 Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits 9.78 13.73
9,78 13.73
20 Long Term Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 2.85 2.78
2.85 2.78
21 Other Current Financial Liabilities
Advances received for Merchant settlement 3,229.83 8,276.02
3,229.83 8,276.02
22 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues 84.05 53.79
Advances received from customers 2,629.42 536.78
Expenses Payables 34.40 263.02
Other Payables 116.56 123.81
2,864.43 977.40
23 Short Term Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 7.34 17.38
- Compensated Absences 69.44 88.25
76.78 105.63
A




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Revenue from Operations

Sales - Prepaid gift vouchers
Processing/Convenience fees

Other operating income
Registration/ Renewal fees
Prepaid card balances written back
Income from POS Machines
Service income

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

10,563.08 12,596.82
9,250.15 9,493.72
19,813.23 22,096.54
83857 980.64
= 160.16
299.92 587.08
483.70 1,266.73
1,422.19 2,994.61
21,235.42 25,091.15

Revenue dissaggregation as per industry vertical and geography has been included in segment information (Refer Note 36)

Other Income

Interest Incorne

Interest on Bank deposits

Interest on Loans

Interest on Income tax refunds

Interest on Others
Profit on redemption of units of mutual funds
Liabilities no longer required written back
Provision no Longer required
Miscellaneous Income

Purchase of Stock in Trade

Purchase of Prepaid Gift vouchers
Purchase of POS Machines

Change in Inventory of Trading Goods

Opening Stock
Less: Closing Stock

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident Fund (Refer Note 39)
staff Gratuity Fund (Refer Note 39)

Director's Remuneration (Refer Note 37)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance Cost

Interest on Statutory Dues
Bank and other financial charges

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Amortisation on intangible assets

29.51 29.65

- 57.89
53.84

. 0.04
150.80 142,63
5.46 58.17

- 101.77
0.20 5182
185.97 505.81
10,736.69 12,133.87
211.61 50.84
10,948.30 12,184.71
25.23 196.97
376.62 2523
(347.39) 167.74
718.12 1,358.97
59.42 78.91
18.39 2151

- 217.94
38.36 4751
834.29 1,724.84
26.96 0.08
40.60 66.24
67.56 66.32
2.71 0.90
10.92 5.65
13.64 6.55

A\VR



Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
31 Other Expenses
Commission- distribution network 6,779.73 6,759.39
Printing of cash cards 233.87 90.57
Hosting/ Internet charges 190.76 164.49
Software maintenance charges 99,27 117.48
Master/Visa Card charges 240.57 209.90
NPCI Bank charges 194.04 285.99
Other operational charges 850.49 800.18
Rent 53.49 59.29
Rates and taxes 211.27 9.65
Insurance charges - 0.94
Repairs and maintenance- others 216.28 231.60
Electricity charges 2695 35.46
Communication expenses 203.84 171.65
Printing and stationary expenses 41.79 23.49
Legal and professional charges 54.69 37.81
Travelling and conveyance expenses 466.011 310.42
Membership and subscription expenses 2105 65.10
Penalty 23.94 -
Directors sitting fees = 0.80
Payment to auditors (Refer Note 31.1) 1250 8.00
Bad debts and advances written off 0.01 0.11
Advertisement and publicity expenses 579 102.13
Business promotion expenses 1.42 64.65
Miscellaneous expenses 56.70 36.27
Total 9,986.36 9,585.37
31.1 Payment to Auditor as:
Statutory Auditor
Audit Fees 11.50 7.00
Tax Audit Fees 2.00 1.00
13.50 8.00
32 Income Tax
32.1 Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax Expenses
Current year = =
Adjustment for previous Year 1.44 -
1.44 -
Deferred Tax Expenses
Change In recognised temporary differences 108.61 (941.76)
Total Tax Expenses 111,05 (941.76)
32.2 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (81.37) 1,861.43
Applicable Tax Rate 0.26 0.29
Computed Tax Expenses (21.16) 539.81
Tax Effect of:
Impact of deferred tax - (1,483.95)
Impact of change in rate of deferred tax 103.18 -
Permanent Differences 11.90 -
Tax adjustment of earlier years 144 -
Other Adjustments 15.69 237
Tax Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss 111.05 (941.76)
Effective Tax Rate (1.38) (0.51)
33 Earning Per Share
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (192.42) 2,803.19
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 16,877,137 16,842,061
EPS - Basic and Diluted (Amount in Rs.) (0.01) 017
N |




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated

34 The information related to Micrs, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informatian available with the
Campany.

35 Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

A. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars [ 31-Mar-19 | 31-Mar-18
Potential Liability under Indiract taxes | 552.95 | 55295

Capital And Other Commitments
8. Estimated amount of contracte an Capital Account and other commitments remaining to be executed and not provided for in accounts Rs. Nil {Previeus Year Rs. Nilj

=

36 Segment Information:
The Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), examines the company's perfarmance from product perspective and has identified two reportable operative business
The © 's significant source of risk and rewards are derived from Retail Business and Gift cards/ vouchers, the performance of which (s reviewed by the CODM on a

periodic basis and hence considered as individual operative segments.

The pany's reportable seg and seg information is presented below:

2018-19

Particulars Gift Cards/Gift Retail Natworks Total
Revenue 11,441.82 9,793.61 21,23542
|Segm|mt Result {profit before tax) (520.43) 596.73 76.31
Unallocable Expenses 373.36
Operating Incame {297.06)
Other Income (net) 185.97
Profit before tax {111.09) |
Tax expenses/{Income} 103.05
Profit for the year [214.14)
Segment Assets 347487 950.31 4,435.18
Unallocable Assets 16,508.61
Total Assets 20,933.79
Segment Liabilities 2,856.09 5777.38 8,673.47
Unallocable Liabilities B67.56
Total Liabilities 856.09 5,777.38 9,541.03
2017-18

Gift Cards/Gift
Partic
ulars Vouchers Retall Networks Total
Revenug 14,071.33 11,019.82 25,091.15
Segment Result (profit before tax] 1758.70 511672 6,875.42
Unallocable Expenses - - 6,354.80
Operating Income = - 52062
Other Income (net) = - 1,345.79
Profit before tax - - 1,866.41
Tax expen Income . = (B85.48)
Frofit for the year - - 2,751.89
Assels 551285 7,554.69 13,107 .54

Unallocable Assets z - 12,075.37
Total Assets - x 25,182.90
Segment Liabiliti 230.21 12,426.35 12,656.56
Unallocable Lizbilties = = 1,133.58
Total Liabilities 230.21 12,426.35 13,790.13 |

37 Related Party Disclosure:-
' List of Related Parties:-

A.  Name and nature of relationship with the related party where control exists:
Ebix inc. USA - Ultimate Holding Company
Ebix Software India Pvt Ltd - Holding Campany
tzCash Payment Solutions Limited - Whelly Owned Subsidiary Company

Fellow subsidiaries of Holding C y o Ul Haolding Company with whom transactions took place
Ebix Travels Private Limited

Ebix Smartclass Educational Services Pvt Ltd

Leisure Corp Private Limited

Ebix Maoney Express Private Limited




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as ITZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

B.  Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Rebin Raina Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goel (Upto 31st Mar 2019} Director
Mr. Mukund Manghar Chitale (Upto 31st Mar 2019) Director
M. Vikas Verma Director
Mr. Raman Aggarwal (upto 25th Feb 2019) Director
Mr. Pavan Bhalla Director
Mr. Satya Bushan Kotru Director
Mr. Graham lohn Prior Director
Mr Nedl David Eckert Director
M. Ravi Singh {upto 23rd Apr 2018) Director
Mr. Sumit Khadria Chief Financial Officer
C.  Enterprise, over which Key g and their exercise significant influence, with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Interactive Financial & Trading Services Private Limited
Interactive Tradex India Put Ltd

[} Transactions with related parties during the year ended 31-03-2019 in the ordinary course of business is given below:

Companies under Common Contral With Key mManagement Fersannel &
Particulars Relatives
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Ebix Software ndia Private Limited
Payment made on behalf of Ebix Software India Private Limited 60.76

Ebix Travels Private Limited

Purchase of tickets using portal of Ebix Travels Private Limited 10,448.93 1,561.88 -
Ebix Smartclass Educational Services Pyt Ltd

Sale of Prepaid Gift Cards/ Vouchers 6533 - - 3

|Ehdx Money Express Private Limited

Trade Advance Given 900,00

Gift card Load Given 1,105.97

Leisure Corp Private Limited

Trade Advance Given 200.00 - -
Services Received 120.17 - -
Services Given 7.69

ItzCash Payment Solutions Limited

Reimbursement of expenses 1.85 - -

Interactlve Tradex India Pyt Ltd (ITIPL)
Payment made by ITIPL on behalf of company 25508 42 15,514.12 -

Trade advance given 429.17 1,122.14
30.00 336.00
66.00 162 00 s =
- 1,375.00 :
1266 = 3
2,689 .82 1,144 64 =
IFT5PL on behalf of company 886,882 30 352,601 04 =
hehalf of company 894,261.53 349,453.66 -
216.00 B801.98 =
171.60 360.00 -
43.20 384.00 - -
* 6,000.00 -
55.23 il =
|Remuneration
Mr. Naveen Surya . 148.74
Mr. Devesh Pandya - - 63.50
Mr. Ravi Singh - = 63.20
Sitting Fees
Mr. Mukund Manohar Chitale - = 0.40
Mr. Mohan Vasant Tanksale - - 0.40
Outstanding Balances
Receivahle/ (Payable

|Eb|)r Travels Private Limited (633.94) (1,561.88) -
Ebix Smartclass Educational Services Pyt Ltd 273 - - -
interactive Financial & Trading Services Private Limited 421.13 5,750.16 - .
Interactive Tradex India Pvt Ltd 429.17 1,122.14
Ebix Money Express Private Limited 00 00 -
[Leisure Corp Private Limited 200.00 :

Transactions with related parties have been disclosed from or upto the date, the parties became/remain as related parties.




Ebix Payment Services Privete Limited (Formerly known a3 [TZ Cash Card Put. Ltd.)
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
All Amounts In INR Lakhs unless stharwisa stated

38 Detalls of Loans givan, Investments mede and Guarantse glvan coversd 1/s 136 4) of the Companies Act, 2013,

During the year, the Company is nat having any transaction related ta losn, investment and guaraniee covered o/ 185 (%) of the Companies Act. The 2esa fis of tramiwetions Auring pravious yesr are gean below:

et Loan outstanding as at 1st| Loan given during the Loan recaversd Livan outstanding ss st
__April 2017 your during the year 31m March 2018 |
A) Loan Given
Interactive Financisl & Trading Services Pvt. Ltd. 1,37500 - 137500 B
Interactive Traden [ndia Pyt Ltd. £,000 00 1 §,000.00 -
L_}—__J't o0 - — _
Hetes

{1} Al above inter corporate deposits Are given at an interest rate of 7% p.a
[if) A4l the above loans are provided for business purp, e entities, ble an dermand with repayment cption o the borrowerd

39 Employes benefits

T — Ibutes to the

dafinad benefit plans in Indis

Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount of Rs, 59.02 Lakhs (Previous Tear Rs. 78.91 Lakns] is recognised as expanses and indluded in "Empioyes Benefits Expenca” in Nota 18 of the Statement of Prafit and Loss.

Defined Benafit Plan |
The company has 8 defined bensfit gratulty plan. Every employee who has completad five years or more of service is entithed to Gratuity on terms net less favourable than the prowvisions of the Fayment of Gratulty Act,

1573 The schame it lunded with “The Employees’ Gratuity Fund Scheme® managed by LIC of india.

The most recent actunrial veluation of plan assets and the prasent value of th defined bensfit abligation for gratuty were carried out a3 at 31 March 2015, The present value of the defined benefit ohiigations and the
relatad current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method

Based on the actuarial valuation ebtained in thic recpect. the following [abie sets out the status ol the gretulty plan and the amaounts recogniced in the Company's financial itatements a5 at balance sheet date;

S1st March 2019 315t March 2018
(a) Neot defined benafit liability
Uability for Gratuity 1019 20,16
Total employee Benefit liability 10.19 20.18
Mon-Current 2.8% 278
Current T34 17.38
11 fa) fliation of a of the present valus of the Dafined Benafit Dbligation
2018-19 2017-18
Brasent valus of Defined Benafit Obligation at the beginning of the yesr 11687 e
Friterest Cost am 63
Current Service Cogt 16.37 19,77
Acturial Losses/{Gans] 2674 X
Benafits Paid (48.70)
L t value of Defined Benetit Obligation at the close of the year 119,29 116.87
) Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets and reconciliation thereat
2018-19 2017-18
Falr Valys of Plan Assets at the of the year %7 109,
Adjustments
Add: Actua!| Return 50 Plan ATt 515
Add/[Less]; Mertality Charges
d; Emy tribution 5162
Less: Berefits Paid (45. 70}
Falr Valuw of Plan Assets at the close of the yesr 109.10]

fc} Amount recognised In tha Balance Sheet

[Particutars 2018-19 201718

Wi o] Benefit n 119.29 116.87
Lgss; Falr Value of Plan Assets 109.10 56.71
[Prazant vaiue of I 210.20] 20.16)
[d} Amount reeognisad in thae Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows :
\Paruculars 7T T I . | S—
Lo ncome
|Cutrgnt Service Cost 1637 1877
|interestCost 501 BE3
Expected raturn on Plan Assat 746 {7.30)
Totsl 17.93 2111
In Cahar henilve Income
Met actuarial it __{28.72} 72.37
| Total [29.72] 237

5] Investment Details:
Funds Managed by Insures {investmant with insurer) 100% 100%

[ 2017-18
7.66%] 7.71%)
y 6.00% |
The of rate of in salary E in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, prametion and other relevant tactors including supp!y and Jemand in the emoloyment market The aove

information ks certified by the actuary
The Expeced Rate of Rgturn on Plan Acsets is determined considening several apglicabla factors, mainly the comaesition af Plan Aszets held, assmssed rliks, historical resutts of return on Plan Assets and the Cormpany's palicy

for Plan Assets Management.
The expected contributions for Defined Benefit Flan for the next financial year will be in line with FY¥ 2018.19

\4 "
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Motes to Financlal Statemants for the year ended 31 March 2019

s of ligations
Amgunt
Ote } Year 285 |
1to? Year L84
2to 3 Year 247
tod Yeal 355
4105 Yaar 28
StobYear 407 |
& Year orvwards 10148 |
{h] Sensitivity Anakysis:
igr Actuarial ions for the of the defined benefit obilgation are discount rate expected salary ineraate and amployes turnover. The sensitivity anslysis below, have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the occurring st end of perlod , while heiding all other assumptions canstant. The result of Sensitivity analysis ks given below.
T Asat 315t March 2018 As st 315t March 2018
Inereasa Ducraase Increase
Change in discounting rate deita etfect of /- D.5%1 {sa7) 7.55 (7.34) 176
Change In rate of salary increase (deita effect of +/- 0 5%) 657 6.51} 7.B5 (7 28)

40 Lease

The Campany has taken various cancellable leases for commercal premises.

Lease payments eharged dusing the yess 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss amounts 1o Re 53.89 Lakhs (Previous year 95 59.29 | akhs],
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Al In INR Lakhs unless oth fse stated

41  Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management

I, Fair Value Measurements
A. Financial Instruments By Category*
Asat 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Particulars
FVTOCH Amaortised Cost FVTOC Amaortised Cost
Financial assets
Non-Current Investmants 20.14 20,14

Loans * 113.95 - 6395

Other Non-Current Financial Assets - 89.92 . i6.18

Trade Receivables 2,821.26 - 380889

Cash and Cash Equivalents g 1063283 = 7.812.47

Bank Balances Other Than Above & 1.479.00 - 2,11743
Dther Current Financial Assets - 174,14 - 6,652.42

20.14 15,903.10 20.14 20,481.34

*Exclude financial instruments measured at cost
Financial Liabilities
Borrawings £ & - c

Trade Payables 5] 357150 . 4,414.07

Other Financial Liabilities - 3,239.61 - 8,789.7%

= 6,811.11 : 12,703.82

B. Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judg: and made in ing the fair values of the financial instruments that are

(o} recognised and measured at fair value and
(bl measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements,

To provide an indication about the reliabllity of the Inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanaticn of each level follows underneath the 1able.

Financlal assets measured at Fair V - measurem

As at 31 March 2019
e i Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial Assets
Nen-Current Investments ] = 20.14 014
Total financial assets - = 20.14 20.14

Financlal assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Particulars As at 31 March 2018

Level 1 Lovel2 Level3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans - - 113.95 113.8%
Other Non-Current Financial Assets - - B9.92 89.52
Trade Recelvables - # 1,823.26 1,B23.26
Cash And Cash Equivalents - = 10,622.83 10,622.83
Bank Balances Other Than Above - - 1,479.00 1,479.00
Other Current Financial Assets - - 774.14 Jis14

- 15,803.10 15,303.10

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Trade Payables - B 3.57L50 357150
Other Financial Liabilities . 2 3,339.61 3,23961
Total financial iabilities . = 651111 681111
Financial assets measured at Fair Value - il measurements
Particulars As at 31 March 2018

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Mon-Current Investments = = 20.14 20.14
Total financial assets % i 0.4 2014

i ial Assets and Liabilities which are d at rtised cost for which fair values are disciosed

Particulars As at 31 March 2018

Level 1 Leve| 2 Level3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans = - €3.95 63.95
Dther Nen-Current Financial Assets - - 26.18 26.18
Trade Receivables - - 3,808.89 3.808.89
Cash And Cash Equivalents - - 7.812.47 7.812.47
Bank Balances Other Than Above - = 2,117.43 211743
Other Current Financial Assets - - 5,652.43 665242
Total Financial Assets E = 20,431.34 20,5134
Financial Liabilitles
Borrowings - . - -
Trade Payables - ¥ 4,414.07 441407
Other Financial Liabilities - - 8,289.75 8.389.75
Total Financial Liabilities = 3 12,703.83 12,703.82

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equety mnstruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all
equity instruments [including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges |s valued using the closing price as at the reparting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bends, over-th: Pvatives) is ined using valuati i which
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level
k3

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

There are na transfers between (evel 1 and level 2 during the vear

b e
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Valuatis hnigue used to d ine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
-the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
~Fair value of derivative financial instruments are based on broker quotations

-the fair value of the financial 5 i ined using di cash flow analysis,
C F'i 'llll!d' dal assets and Habilith d at amortised cost
As at 31 March 2019 As a1 31 March 2018
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Loans 113.95 113.95 63.95 63.95
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 83,52 89.52 26.18 26.18
Trade Receivables 181326 1.823.26 3,808.89 3,808 89
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,622.83 10,622 83 781247 781247
Bank Balances Other Than Above 1,479.00 1,478.00 211743 2,11743
QOther Current Financlal Assets 774.14 77414 6,652 42 6,652 47
15,903.10 15,903.10 20,481 34 20,481.34
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings - * -
Trade Payables 357150 357150 441407 441407
Other Financial Liabilities 3,239.61 3,239.51 828975 B89 75
6,811.11 6811.11 12,703.82 12,703.82
The carrying of trade r bles, cash and cash equival bank bak: other currrent financial assets, trade payables, and other financal liabilities are considered to be the same as their

Il. Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= credit risk;

= liquidity risk; and

- market risk

Risk Management Framework
The company is exposed primarily to credit, liquidity and market risk which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments, The Company assesces the unpredictability of the financial
environment and seeks 1o mitigate potential adverse effects on the finandial performance of the Company.

. Credit Risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss to ifa ar ¥ to the financial instrument fails to meet its financial obligati and arises by from
customers,

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other financial assets, None of the
financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk other than trade receivable.

The company malntains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank Depusits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit reting and also reviews their credit rating ona
timely basis.
The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is fls, 2846.64 Lakhs {31st March 2018 Rs. 3832.27 Lakhs).

During the period, the Company has made no write-offs of trade receivables. The Company management also pursue all options for recovery of dues wherever necessary based on its internal
assessment.A default on a financial asset is whan ty fails to make within 365 days when they fall dus.

Reconciliation Of Loss Allowance Provision — Trade Receivables

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening balance 2,337.65 4,31252
Changes in loss allowance calculated at |ife time expected credit losses * 512
Clasing balance 2,337.65 2,337.65
. Uigquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are to be settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed condtions, withaut
ncurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitaring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The P has no ing lang term barrowing and the company believes that working capital is sufficiant to meet its current requirements,

(a) Maturities of financial liabilities
The g are the i ities of financial li at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and excluding contractual interest payments and axclude the

impact of netting agreements,

Carrying Amounts Contractual cash flows
Particulars 31 March 2019 Uplo 1 year Betweenland 2  Between 2and 5 years More than 5 year
Yaars
R P
Trade payables 3,571.50 3,571.50 & - -
Other financial liabilities 3,239.61 321983 = ] 5.78
Total non-derivative liabilities 6811.11 6,801.33 - . 9.78
Canrying Amounts Contractual cash flows
Particulars 31 March 2018 Upto 1 year Between 1and 2  Between 2 and 5 years More than 5 year
ial ETTS A
Trade paysbles 4,414,07 4,414.07 - > &
Other financial labilities B.289.75 827602 = = 13.73
- liabilities 12,703.82 12,690.09 - s 13.73
i, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Such changes in the values of financal instruments may result
from changes in the farelgn currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company does not have any significant Market rick

a) Currency risk
The Company does not have any exp in foreign currency and therefare not exposed to curmency risk.
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b} Interest rata risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in

market interest rates related primarily to the Company's term deposits with banks with floating interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing
strategies to achieve an aptimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company 's interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the regorting period are as foliows:

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Fixed Rate Instruments
Financial Assets 437.73 42,698.5%
Financial Liahilities - -

437.73) [42,698.59)

Variable Rate Instruments
Finandial Assets - -
Financial Liabilites = x
Sensitivity analysis
Fixed rate instruments

Fined rate instruments that are carried at amartised cost are not subject to interest rate risk for the purpose of sensitive analysis.

Varlable rate instruments
A reasanably possible change of 100 basis points in variable rate instruments at the reporting dates would hava increased or decreased profit or less by the amounts shewn below. This analysis assumes

that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss, net of tax Equity, net of tax
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 hp increase 100 bp decrease
31 March 2019

Wariable Rate |nstruments - - - =

31 March 2018
Variable Rate [nstruments

Cash flow sensitivity (net] ¥ % 3 %

42 Capital management

The Company manages its capital te ensure that it will be able to i as going while imizing the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance,

The board of directors of the Company review the capital structure of the Company on a an ongoing basis, &s part of this review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital.

necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

43  The figures of the previous year have been g . fed and

For T R Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the hoard of directors of

Chart, ntants Ebix Payment Services Private Limlted u \—
Firm : DO6T1IN/ 28 [earlier @5 ITZ Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.) V
r
.
Hi Safva i Vikas Verma
Part Director Directar
M. No.; 502955 DIN: 01729176 DIN: 03511116
Place: Noida
Date: 29th November 2019
Rahul Chopea
Company Secretary
M. No.; 41826
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1.

b)

<)

d)

e)

Reporting Entity

Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Itz Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.) (“Itz Cash” or “the Company”)
incorporated in the State of Maharashtra, India is engaged in the business of providing payment solutions to corporate
and consumers through Prepaid Payment Instruments as well as providing composite Payment Gateway by accepting

Debit/Credit Cards issued by various banks. The Company also issues semi closed Prepaid Payment Instruments as
defined under Payment and Settlement System Act, 2007 read with RBI guidelines on Prepaid Payment Instruments.

Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of Compliance

The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 on a going concern basis following
accrual system of accounting and comply with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as specified under Section 133 of
Companies Act 2013 read with rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (‘INR’), which is the Company’s functional currency.
Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule Il (Division Il) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time
between the rendering of service and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its

operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Judgment and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively.

TR
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vi.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities
are not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Income Taxes & Deferred Taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether tax
positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can
only be resolved over extended time periods. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits
during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. The Company
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

Impairment Testing

Investments in subsidiaries and intangible assets are tested for impairment at least annually and when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating units to which these
pertain is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair
value less cost to dispose. The calculation of value in use of a cash generating unit involves use of significant estimates
and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate
projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of
collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Company’s past history, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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f)

Property, plant and equipment:
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss if any. The cost of assets comprises of purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working
condition for its intended use including borrowing cost and incidental expenditure during construction incurred up to the
date when the assets are ready to use. Capital work in progress includes cost of assets at sites, construction expenditure
and interest on the funds deployed.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
a separate item (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Land and buildings acquired/constructed, not intended to be used in the operations of the Company are categorized as
investment property.

Any gain/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in Profit and loss account.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on Straight Line Method (SLM) using the rates arrived at based on the
estimated useful lives given in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost of leasehold land is amortized over the lease period.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if any, are
accounted for prospectively.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of
the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical cost. Intangibles assets having a
finite life are subsequently carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the

\

\ \av—

asset is derecognized.
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g)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36- ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU").

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the
carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet for possible reversal of an
impairment loss recognized for an asset, in prior accounting periods.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortized cost
e Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC!)
e Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
e Equity Instrument measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC!)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

-itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
_ the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR (effective
interest rate) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
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Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCl. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOC], is classified as
at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instrument measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in OCl. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)

A
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the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to
repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset de-recognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCl is
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with the assets carried at
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment |oss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”
which requires expected life time losses to be recognized from initial recognition of receivables. The Company uses
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date, these
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of

transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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e Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are maodified, the company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the
original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new
financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the modification
does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain
or loss in profit or loss. If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain
or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities

The company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with
modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.




Ebix Payment Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Itz Cash Card Pvt. Ltd.)
Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31* March 2019

h}

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from prepaid payment instruments (processing fees/ convenience fees) and sale
of prepaid gift vouchers. With effective from 1st April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Ind AS 115
replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted the Ind AS 115 using the
cumulative effect method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognized at the date of initial application (i.e.
April 1, 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively only to the contracts that are not completed as at the date of
initial application. The comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated — i.e. the comparative
information continues to be reported under the Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Refer Note 2 (g) — Significant accounting
policies — Revenue recognition in the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018,
for the revenue recognition policy as per the Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the
financial statements of the Company is insignificant.

Sale of Goods & Services

Revenue from prepaid payment instruments includes processing fees/ convenience fees which is recognized on
utilization of these instruments by the customers. Revenue from sales of prepaid gift vouchers is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customers. Revenue from other services
including registration/ renewal fees is recognized when such services are completed/ performed as per the agreed terms.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration as specified in the contract with the
customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and
only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by the nature of goods and services.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR is computed basis the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. The calculation includes all fees, transaction costs, and
all other premiums or discounts paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized, when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Foreign currency transactions
a. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

b. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies (such as cash, receivables, payables etc.) outstanding at the
year-end are translated at exchange rates applicable on year end date.

c. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency, (such as fixed assets) are valued at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction and carried at cost.

d. Any gains or losses arising due to exchange differences arising on translation or settlement are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

NV
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i)

k)

Employee benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

Liabilities for salaries, including other monetary and non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

b. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans (Contribution to Provident Fund) are expensed as the related
service is provided.

c. Defined benefit plans

The company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of
any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the company, the recognized asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability
(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined
liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and
benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss. When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The
company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS 109 -
‘Financial Instruments’.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use.

Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.
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a. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

i) Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
ii) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax base. Deferred tax is not recognized for temporary
differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to underline transactions either in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in Equity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
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n)

o)

P)

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgement of the management/independent experts. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgement of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leases (As Lessee)
Accounting for finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee has substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance lease. On initial recognition, assets held under finance leases are recorded as
property, plant and equipment and the related liability is recognized under borrowings. At the inception of the lease,
finance leases are recorded at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance
expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability.

The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Accounting for operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee
are classified as operating lease. Payments made under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Operating Segment

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis
of internal reports used by the Company's management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer is collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision
Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in
connection with performance assessment measures putin place.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
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q)

r)

be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly head office expenses, finance costs, income tax
expenses and head office income.

Revenue directly attributable to the segments is considered as segment revenue. Expenses directly attributable to the
segments and common expenses allocated on a reasonable basis are considered as segment expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets other than goodwill.

Segment assets comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, trade and other receivables, inventories and
other assets that can be directly or reasonably allocated to segments. Segment assets do not include investments,
income tax assets, capital work in progress, capital advances, head office assets and other current assets that cannot
reasonably be allocated to segments.

Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities in respect of a segment and consist principally of trade and other
payables, employee benefits and provisions. Segment liabilities do not include equity, income tax liabilities, loans and
borrowings and other liabilities and provisions that cannot reasonably be allocated to segments.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareheolders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and
also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 has
notified the following new and amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019:

Ind AS 116 — Leases

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified the new standard to be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116, on leases, requires lessees to recognize all leases on the balance sheet.
Therefore, leases previously treated as operating leases will now be recognized on balance sheet. A lessee will recognize
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability and will accordingly recognize depreciation and interest expense in P&L instead of
lease rental recognized earlier. The company believes that there will not be any material impact of this standard on its
financial statements.




